
CITY OF HOSCHTON        
CITY COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, APRIL 30, 2024 AT 6:00PM 
HOSCHTON COMMUNITY CENTER  
65 CITY SQUARE, HOSCHTON 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

INVOCATION 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

1. February 8, 2024 Special Called Meeting Minutes 
2. February 8, 2024 Work Session Minutes 
3. February 20, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
4. March 14, 2024 Public Hearing Minutes 
5. March 14, 2024 Work Session Minutes 
6. March 19, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
7. March 26-28, 2024 Council Retreat Minutes 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. Ordinance O-2024-02: An Ordinance Amending the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of Hoschton, Georgia, Chapter 3, “Administration,” Article VIII, “Boards and 
Commissions” To Adopt a New Section 3-801, “Planning and Zoning Commission;” 
To Repeal Conflicting Ordinances; To Provide For Severability; To Provide an 
Effective Date; and for Other Purposes (Second Reading) 

 
2. Ordinance O-2024-03: An Ordinance To Amend the Hoschton Subdivision and Land 

Development Ordinance, Article III, “General Provisions,” Section 303, “City Council 
Authority” To Retitle Said Section and Assign Roles to The Hoschton Planning 
Commission; To Amend Article IV, “Preliminary Plat,” Section 405, “Preliminary Plat 
Process Administration,” To Repeal the Existing Process Flow Chart and To Adopt a 
New Process Flow Chart; To Adopt a New Section 408, “Planning Commission 
Review and Recommendation,” To Amend Section 1204, “Variances” To Establish a 
Role For The Planning Commission; To Amend Section 1207, “Amendment” to 
Establish a Role for the Planning Commission;” To Repeal Conflicting Ordinances; To 
Provide for Severability; To Provide an Effective Date; and For Other Purposes 
(Second Reading) 

 
3. Ordinance TA 2024-01: An Ordinance To Amend the Hoschton Zoning Ordinance, 

Article I, “General,” Section 1.04, “Purposes,” Paragraph 5 to Assign Roles to the 
Hoschton Planning and Zoning Commission; To Amend Article VIII, “Zoning 



Amendments and Applications,” Section 8.01, “Procedures for Calling and 
Conducting Public Hearings,” Section 8.02, “Text Amendments,” Section 8.03, 
“Amendment to the Official Zoning Map,” Section 8.04, “Conditional Uses,” and 
Section 8.05, “Variances” To Assign Roles For The Planning Commission; To Repeal 
Conflicting Ordinances; To Provide for Severability; To Provide an Effective Date; and 
for Other Purposes (Second Reading) 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Members and Terms 
 

2. Planning and Zoning Commission 2024 Meeting Schedule  
 

3. Recommendation to Initiate a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Regarding the 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) District of the zoning ordinance (Sec. 408) 

 

4. Recommendation to Initiate a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Regarding the MU 
(Mixed Use) District of the zoning ordinance (Sec. 414) 

 

5. Recommendation to Initiate a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to Establish a 
Time Limit Regarding Development Pursuant to a Conditional Zoning Approval 

 

6. Resolution 2024-014: Awarding CMAR Contract for WWTF Expansion to 0.95MGD   
to Reeves Young, LLC 
 

7. Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement 
 

8. Audio/Visual Quotes for Community Center sound system  
 

9. Resolution 2024-013: Amending the Personnel Policy Re: Cell Phone Stipend 
 

10. Resolution 2024-012: Amending the Personnel Policy Re: Use of City-Owned Vehicles 
 

11. Police Department Mobile Computer Quote 

 

12. Police Department Software Agreement with i3 Verticals 

 

13. Resolution 2024-015: Transfer of City-Owned Property to Ultra Superior Homes, LLC 

 

14. Proclamation: Professional Municipal Clerks Week May 5-11, 2024 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (if needed) 
 
ADJOURN 
 



ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

Saturday, May 4th 10:00am-5:00pm : Spring Festival, Downtown Hoschton 

CIVILITY PLEDGE 

The way we govern ourselves is often as important as the positions we take.  Our collective 

decisions will be better when differing views have had the opportunity to be fully vetted and 

considered.  All people have the right to be treated with respect, courtesy, and openness.  We 

value all input.  We commit to conduct ourselves at all times with civility and courtesy to each 

other. 

CITY OF HOSCHTON 
RULES OF DECORUM 

The purpose of the Rules of Decorum is to foster an atmosphere of civil and courteous 

discourse, even and especially when discussing contentious topics, at all meetings held by the 

City of Hoschton. 

a. Rules applicable to the public

1. Each speaker will be given 5 minutes during public comment.

2. Each speaker will direct his or her comments to the Mayor or presiding officers

and not to any other individual present.

3. Each speaker will refrain from personal attacks, foul or abusive language, and

will maintain a civil and courteous manner and tone.

4. Each speaker will speak only to the agenda item under consideration.  This does

not apply during the Public Comment agenda item.

5. Members of the audience will respect the rights of others and will not create

noise or other disturbances that will disrupt the meeting.

b. Rules for Mayor and Members of Council, Committees, Boards, or Commissions

1. Members will conduct themselves in a professional and respectful manner at all

meetings.



CITY OF HOSCHTON        
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2024 
HOSCHTON COMMUNITY ROOM AT 5:55PM 
65 CITY SQUARE, HOSCHTON 
 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

DRAFT MINUTES 

 

WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER at 5:55pm by Mayor Martin 

INVOCATION by Councilmember Lawson 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE by Ross Billingsley 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Update to 2024 Council Meeting Schedule 

 

Motion to approve by Councilmember Jackson, seconded by Councilmember Sterling, and all in 

favor. 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; JACKSON-YES; LAWSON-YES; 

STERLING-YES] 

ADJOURN Motion to adjourn at 5:58pm by Councilmember C. Brown, seconded by Councilmember 

Jackson, and all in favor. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Debbie Martin 
Councilmember Christina Brown 
Councilmember David Brown 
Councilmember Scott Courter 
Councilmember Jonathan Jackson 
Councilmember James Lawson 
Councilmember Fredria Sterling 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
____________________________________________      ________________ 
Debbie Martin, Mayor                     Date 
 
____________________________________________ 
Jennifer Williams, Assistant City Clerk 

ALSO PRESENT: 
City Planner Dr. Jerry Weitz 
City Engineer Jerry Hood 
City Manager Jennifer Harrison 
City Attorney Abb Hayes 
Asst. City Clerk Jen Williams 
 



CITY OF HOSCHTON        
CITY COUNCIL 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2024 AT 6:00PM 
HOSCHTON COMMUNITY CENTER  
65 CITY SQUARE, HOSCHTON 
 

WORK SESSION 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 

CALL TO ORDER at 6:00pm by Mayor Martin  

AGENDA APPROVAL Motion to approve with no changes by Councilmember Sterling, seconded 
by Councilmember Courter, and all in favor. 

REPORTS BY MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. Garland Contractors, Inc. Public Works Building Estimate 
The project is in the budget. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Creekside Townhomes Elevations Approval 
The new architectural elevations which have been presented to the Council comply with 
the 50% brick or stone rule; the staff recommendation is approval. 
 

2. Resolution 24-03: City of Civility Designation 
This designation is a promise from the Council to set a positive example through their 
conduct. 
 

3. Resolution 24-04: Property Acquisition from Bobby L. Blankenship and Dianne S. 
Blankenship  
The City has entered into a contract to acquire 17.109acres from the Blankenships.  The 

property will be purchased entirely from impact fees collected from developers.  The park 

impact fee balance is currently just over $800,000; those funds must be used to acquire 

park land.  The property is ideal because it is centrally located, accessible, and 

contiguous to other city property.   

 

4. Resolution 24-05: Awarding Construction Contract for the South Water Tank Project 
Jerry Hood of EMI shared that the lowest bid received for a 1 million gallon water tank 

was $4,225,000.00.  EMI recommends consideration of awarding the contract based on 

a 750,000 gallon tank at a total project cost of $3,349,075.00 to Phoenix Fabricators, 

which is $875,925.00 less than the 1 million gallon tank.  While there would be some loss 

of storage, the City would still have substantial and adequate storage for decades to 

come.  The current and future redundancy and connectivity (with Braselton, Jackson 

County, and Barrow County) negates some need for elevated storage.  Coupled with the 



new 12” grid through the city, the new water tank could increase water pressure by 40-

50psi (fire hydrants @1000-2000 gallons/minute). 

 

5. Resolution 24-06: Awarding Contract for Phase 1B Water Distribution System 
Improvements 
Jerry Hood of EMI explained that the lowest bid was received from Griffin Bros. in the 

amount of $948,431.84. 

 

6. Resolution 24-07: Updating Authorized Signers on Bank Accounts 
This resolution would change the bank account signers to Mayor Debbie Martin, Mayor 

Pro Tem David Brown, and City Manager Jennifer Harrison. 

 

7. Resolution 24-08: A Resolution Accepting from KH Twin Lakes, LLC, the Dedication of 
0.027 acre of right of way along the southeast side of Peachtree Road. 
Staff recommendation: approval 
 

8. Resolution 24-09: A Resolution Accepting from Hog Mountain Properties, LLC, the 
Dedication of 0.092 acre of right of way along the southeast side of Peachtree Road. 
Staff recommendation: approval 
 

9. Resolution 24-10: A Resolution Accepting from Hog Mountain Properties, LLC, the 
Dedication of right of way along the northwest side of Peachtree Road. 
Staff recommendation: approval 
 

10. Resolution 24-11: A Resolution Accepting from DCH Montebello, LLC, the Dedication of 
right of way along the northwest side of Peachtree Road. 
Staff recommendation: approval 
 

11. Request that the Hoschton City Council initiate an application for variance (V-24-01) to 
the Hoschton zoning ordinance, Article IV, “Zoning Districts,”  Section 4.11, “C-2, 
General Commercial Highway Oriented District,” (Table 4.4, “Dimensional Requirements 
for Non-Residential Zoning Districts,” to reduce the required front building setback of 
Peachtree Road Extension right of way (east property line) from 15 feet to 5 feet for 
property (Map/Parcel 120/013I; 1.54 acre) fronting on the east side of SR 53 and the 
south side of Towne Center Parkway) on behalf of the property owner (Towne Center 
53, LLC, Property Owner) (C-2 zoning) 
There is one segment of the planned Peachtree Road Extension that is not controlled by 
the Kroger development.  The property owner has been reluctant to dedicate that land to 
the city because they are worried about creating a new setback of 15 feet from the new 
right of way line.  Planning staff suggests a variance reducing the building setback 
abutting the east property line from 15 feet to 5 feet. Zoning would remain C-2. 

CITIZEN INPUT none 

EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF NEEDED) none needed 



ADJOURN Motion to adjourn at 7:15pm by Councilmember Sterling, seconded by 
Councilmember Lawson, and all in favor. 
 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Debbie Martin 
Councilmember Christina Brown 
Councilmember David Brown 
Councilmember Scott Courter 
Councilmember Jonathan Jackson 
Councilmember James Lawson 
Councilmember Fredria Sterling 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
____________________________________________      ________________ 
Debbie Martin, Mayor                     Date 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Jennifer Williams, Assistant City Clerk 

 

ALSO PRESENT: 
City Planner Dr. Jerry Weitz 
City Engineer Jerry Hood 
City Manager Jennifer Harrison 
City Attorney Abb Hayes 
Asst. City Clerk Jen Williams 
 



CITY OF HOSCHTON        
CITY COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2024 AT 6:00PM 
HOSCHTON COMMUNITY CENTER  
65 CITY SQUARE, HOSCHTON 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

 

CALL TO ORDER at 6:00pm by Mayor Martin 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE led by Martin 

INVOCATION by Sterling 

AGENDA APPROVAL Motion to approve with no changes by Courter, seconded by C. Brown, and 
all in favor. 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

1. January 11, 2024 Public Hearing Minutes 
2. January 11, 2024 Work Session Minutes 
3. January 15, 2024 Regular Session Minutes 

Motion to approve with no changes by Councilmember D. Brown, seconded by 
Councilmember Courter, and all in favor. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. Garland Contractors, Inc. Public Works Building Estimate 

Motion to approve the estimate of $812,784.50 for the construction of the building on Cabin 
Drive behind the tennis courts by D. Brown, seconded by Courter, and all in favor. 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Creekside Townhomes Elevations Approval 

Motion to approve by Sterling, no second, so the motion is not considered. 

Motion to not approve the elevations by Martin, seconded by D. Brown, and the motion 
carries with a 4-1 vote. 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-NO] 

Sterling questioned why the Council did not approve the elevations.  Courter replied that he 
thought the Council should review other architecture options as this building is at the start 
of the downtown corridor and the elevations presented were not necessarily what they want 
to see.  Sterling responded that Mr. Tripp has worked with the City to appease all of its 
requests up to this point, unlike the previous property owner/developer.   



Motion to table until March to allow further discussion among Council by Martin, seconded 
by Sterling, and all in favor. 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 

Courter then asked the property owner, Mr. Tripp, if tabling the elevation approval would 
affect his project.  Mr. Tripp replied that it would affect him as he now has a loan of $2 
million that he is paying interest on.  His elevations include 50% brick, unlike some of the 
other developments in town.  He wants to work with the city and to be a good neighbor in 
the City of Hoschton; he would just like to move forward and be able to build something. C. 
Brown explained that her main concerns are with single-car garages, single-width 
driveways, and street parking, and issues arising from those plans.  D. Brown acknowledged 
that some existing projects don’t have any brick, but that doesn’t mean that it should 
continue that way going forward.  He wishes for this project to be more attractive to the city 
since it is located at its entrance, perhaps with 100% brick fronts.  Mr. Tripp responded that 
the front of the townhome units will be facing the back of Creekside Village.  They are 
planting 100 arborvitaes as a buffer to Creekside Village and they are expected to be 18-20 
ft tall within a couple of years.  That said, he is amenable to putting a few extra bricks on the 
front of some of the units.  Addressing the concerns about single-car garages and driveways, 
Mr. Tripp pointed out that the variance was already approved for those.  He went on to say 
that they like to produce an attractive product to be competitive in the market, but if he has 
to change things too much, the additional cost would be passed on to buyers, potentially 
affecting the affordability of the homes.  His price point will already be higher than 
Cambridge.  Martin pointed out that the rear elevations are also 50% brick and that is what 
will be seen from Hwy 53.  Mr. Tripp add that the rear of this project will also contain a 6ft 
wooden fence along with arborvitaes, as he wants to buffer his units from the car wash that 
has been approved.  D. Brown asked if Mr. Tripp’s timeline would be affected if this item was 
tabled and he was given an answer in a week or two.  Mr. Tripp answered that he can’t get 
building permits until the elevations are approved and would like to avoid additional 
carrying costs. 

Motion to approve the elevations by Sterling, seconded by C. Brown, and the motion carries 
with a 4-1 vote. 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-NO; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 

2. Resolution 24-03: City of Civility Designation 
 

Motion to approve by Sterling, seconded by Courter, and all in favor. 
 
[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 
 
3. Resolution 24-04: Property Acquisition from Bobby L. Blankenship and Dianne S. 

Blankenship  

The purchase price of $1,200,000 will be paid entirely with impact fees collected from 
developers and designated for parks.   

Motion to approve by C. Brown, seconded by Sterling, and all in favor. 



[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 

4. Resolution 24-05: Awarding Construction Contract for the South Water Tank Project 
 

Motion to award a contract in the amount of $3,015,906.00 to Phoenix Fabricators for the 
construction of a 750,000 gallon water tank by D. Brown, seconded by Sterling, and all in 
favor. 

 
[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 

 
5. Resolution 24-06: Awarding Contract for Phase 1B Water Distribution System 

Improvements 

Motion to award a contract in the amount of $948,431.00 to Griffin Bros. for Phase 1B 
water system improvements by D. Brown, seconded by Courter, and all in favor. 
 
[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 

6. Resolution 24-07: Updating Authorized Signers on Bank Accounts 

Motion to approve by Martin, seconded by D. Brown, and all in favor. 
 
[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 

 
7. Resolution 24-08: A Resolution Accepting from KH Twin Lakes, LLC, the Dedication of 

0.027 acre of right of way along the southeast side of Peachtree Road. 

Motion to approve by C. Brown, seconded by Sterling, and the motion carries with a 4-1 
vote. 

[MARTIN-NO; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 
 

8. Resolution 24-09: A Resolution Accepting from Hog Mountain Properties, LLC, the 
Dedication of 0.092 acre of right of way along the southeast side of Peachtree Road. 

 
Motion to approve by Courter, seconded by D. Brown, and the motion carries with a 4-1 
vote. 

[MARTIN-NO; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 
 

9. Resolution 24-10: A Resolution Accepting from Hog Mountain Properties, LLC, the 
Dedication of right of way along the northwest side of Peachtree Road. 

 
Motion to approve by Courter, seconded by C. Brown, and the motion carries with a 4-1 
vote. 

[MARTIN-NO; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 
 

 



10. Resolution 24-11: A Resolution Accepting from DCH Montebello, LLC, the Dedication of 
right of way along the northwest side of Peachtree Road. 
 

Motion to approve by D. Brown, seconded by Courter, and all in favor. 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 
 

11. Request that the Hoschton City Council initiate an application for variance (V-24-01) to 
the Hoschton zoning ordinance, Article IV, “Zoning Districts,”  Section 4.11, “C-2, 
General Commercial Highway Oriented District,” (Table 4.4, “Dimensional 
Requirements for Non-Residential Zoning Districts,” to reduce the required front 
building setback of Peachtree Road Extension right of way (east property line) from 15 
feet to 5 feet for property (Map/Parcel 120/013I; 1.54 acre) fronting on the east side 
of SR 53 and the south side of Towne Center Parkway) on behalf of the property 
owner (Towne Center 53, LLC, Property Owner) (C-2 zoning) 

Motion to approve by D. Brown, seconded by C. Brown, and all in favor. 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; STERLING-YES] 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION (If needed) none 

ADJOURN Motion to adjourn at 6:37pm by Sterling, seconded by Courter, and all in favor. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Debbie Martin, Mayor 
Christina Brown, Councilmember 
David Brown, Councilmember 
Scott Courter, Councilmember 
Fredria Sterling, Councilmember 
 
ABSENT 
Jonathan Jackson, Councilmember 
James Lawson, Councilmember 

ALSO PRESENT: 
Jennifer Harrison City Manager 
Jen Williams, Assistant City Clerk 
Media 



CITY OF HOSCHTON        
CITY COUNCIL  
THURSDAY, MARCH 14, 2024 AT 6:00PM 
HOSCHTON COMMUNITY CENTER  
65 CITY SQUARE, HOSCHTON 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
MINUTES 

 
WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER at 6:00pm by Mayor Martin 

INVOCATION by Councilmember Lawson 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE by resident Ace Acevedo 

AGENDA APPROVAL Motion to approve as-is by Courter, seconded by Lawson, and all in favor. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Z-24-01 Rezoning (formerly Z-23-13): Southeastern Property Developers, LLC, applicant, 
seeks to rezone to PUD (Planned Unit Development) five parcels of land totaling 12.74 
acres from the existing zoning shown below: 

 
(1) 1909, LLC, property owner, rezone from C-1, Neighborhood Business District, 1.7 acres 

(Map/Parcel 120/014A) fronting approximately 150 feet on the east side of State Route 
53 and fronting approximately 360 on the south side of Pendergrass Road (SR 332); and  

(2) Hilliard L. Lott, property owner, rezone from R-1, Single Family Low Density District, 2.73 
acres (Map/Parcel 120/014) fronting on the south side of Pendergrass Road (SR 332); 
and 

(3) Queen Frank as Trustee of The Queen Family Trust, property owner, from C-2 (General 
Commercial/Highway Oriented District) 2.31 acres (Map/Parcel 120/013H), fronting on 
the south side of Pendergrass Road/SR 332 and fronting on the west side of Towne 
Center Parkway); and  

(4) Queen Frank as Trustee of The Queen Family Trust, property owner, from C-2 (General 
Commercial/Highway Oriented District) 4.14 acres (Map/Parcel 120/013G) between 
Pendergrass Road (SR 332) and Towne Center Parkway; and  

(5) Queen Frank as Trustee of The Queen Family Trust, property owner, from C-2 (General 
Commercial/Highway Oriented District) 1.86 acres (Map/Parcel 120/013M) fronting on 
the southeast side of Towne Center Parkway.  

 
Proposed uses: 292 luxury apartments and a brew pub. 
 

Comments in Support: 
Joshua Scoggins, Tribble Gap Rd, Cumming, presented a PowerPoint displaying the project 
highlights.  The apartments would be Class A luxury apartments from an established builder.  
The 1- to 2- bedroom units would target professionals and empty-nesters not interested in 



homeownership, lessening the impact on school system compared to typical apartments.  They 
will build when the sewer capacity is available.   
 
Thomas Harris, Braselton Hwy, Lawrenceville, spoke on behalf of the Queen Family Trust to say 
that this is the first offer the family has had on the property and they would like to take 
advantage of this opportunity to liquidate. 
 
Drew Cunningham, Peachtree St, Atlanta, pointed out a nearby project “The Finch” in Braselton; 
he can share a list of other developments with Council. 
 
Comments in Opposition: 
Ace Acevedo, 100 Powell Ct, stated his concerns about traffic, parking, vacant apartments, and 
the unknown impact of the already in progress build-to-rent neighborhood in the city. 
 
Michael Segal, 86 Powell Ct, stated his concern about the beautification of the city with regard 
to setbacks, landscaping, and sidewalks. 
 
Scott Butler, 448 Deer Creek Trl, questioned how the developer would mitigate the additional 
impact from increased traffic: GDOT wants to remove 400 cars from 53; this development would 
add 2100.  He also stated concern about impact on schools. 
 
Jack Flint, 585 Cumberland Trl, asked council to consider the 4th story of the G.P.’s Enterprises 
development requiring an elevator.  What would the development do for the city? 
 
 
Councilmember Christina Brown stated that the proposed plan does not adhere to the future 
land use component of the city’s comprehensive plan.  The city must preserve its commercial 
property/ economic base.  The property assemblage is currently zoned 78.6% commercial and 
the proposed plan would decrease that to 1.6% commercial.  As zoned, there are many 
reasonable uses for the property. 
 
Councilmember David Brown questioned what the developer would do about traffic on Hwy 53. 
Scoggins: Whatever GDOT requires. They are happy to contribute turn/decel lanes as required 
by GDOT or the city. 
Brown: this plan exceeds allowable density; what would you do to meet our guidelines? 
Scoggins: The PUD zoning would allow for greater density, like in some other Hoschton 
developments. 
 

2. V-24-01 Variance: City of Hoschton, applicant, for Towne Center 53, LLC, Property 
Owner, seeks a variance to the Hoschton Zoning Ordinance, Article IV, “Zoning 
Districts,” Section 4.11, “C-2, General Commercial Highway Oriented District,” (Table 
4.4, “Dimensional Requirements for Non-Residential Zoning Districts,” to waive or 
reduce the required front building setback of the proposed Peachtree Road Extension 
right of way (east property line) from 15 feet to 5 feet or 0 feet for property 



(Map/Parcel 120/013I; 1.54 acre) fronting on the east side of SR 53 and the south side of 
Towne Center Parkway) (C-2 zoning). Proposed use: Commercial. 
 
Dr. Weitz stated that the City has still not heard from the property owner regarding this 
variance initiated on their behalf.  He further explained that the variance is only in effect 
if the property owner dedicates the right of way to the City. 
 

3. Ordinance O-2024-02: An Ordinance Amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Hoschton, Georgia, Chapter 3, “Administration,” Article VIII, “Boards and Commissions” 
To Adopt a New Section 3-801, “Planning and Zoning Commission;” To Repeal 
Conflicting Ordinances; To Provide For Severability; To Provide an Effective Date; and for 
Other Purposes 

 
Dr. Weitz, Mayor, and Councilmembers discussed the following changes to the proposed 
version of the ordinance: 
- change the number of members from 7 to 5 
- change initial terms as follows, then staggered 3-year terms to provide continuity: 
 1 member-1 year term 
 2 members- 2 year term 
 2 members- 3 year term 
- remove “due cause shown” language  
- vacancies will be filled by appointment for the unexpired term 
- eliminate the absence provision 
-a secretary will not be necessary; records will be kept to include at minimum: members 
present, members absent, and any votes taken 
-the quorum shall be changed from 4 to 3 members 
-meetings: the city will set the meeting dates/time 
 
Councilmember Lawson wants it made clear that the commission will be making 
recommendations, not policies.  Dr. Weitz replied that it is made clear in the regulations. 
(page 8 of TA-24-01) 
 
Councilmember Sterling stressed that the planning and zoning commission needs to 
understand their role and the chain of command.  Final decisions will lie with the Mayor 
and Council.  City Attorney Abb Hayes stated that the ordinances will spell out the role of 
the commission and that the members of the commission will receive training. 
 
Hayes further stated that under the charter, since changes have been made to the 
proposed ordinance, it will need two readings before it is in effect. If the majority 
approve in a vote at the March regular meeting, then a second reading will take place in 
April. 
 

4. Ordinance O-2024-03: An Ordinance To Amend the Hoschton Subdivision and Land 
Development Ordinance, Article III, “General Provisions,” Section 303, “City Council 



Authority” To Retitle Said Section and Assign Roles to The Hoschton Planning 
Commission; To Amend Article IV, “Preliminary Plat,” Section 405, “Preliminary Plat 
Process Administration,” To Repeal the Existing Process Flow Chart and To Adopt a New 
Process Flow Chart; To Adopt a New Section 408, “Planning Commission Review and 
Recommendation,” To Amend Section 1204, “Variances” To Establish a Role For The 
Planning Commission; To Amend Section 1207, “Amendment” to Establish a Role for the 
Planning Commission;” To Repeal Conflicting Ordinances; To Provide for Severability; To 
Provide an Effective Date; and For Other Purposes 

 
5. Ordinance TA 2024-01: An Ordinance To Amend the Hoschton Zoning Ordinance, Article 

I, “General,” Section 1.04, “Purposes,” Paragraph 5 to Assign Roles to the Hoschton 
Planning and Zoning Commission; To Amend Article VIII, “Zoning Amendments and 
Applications,” Section 8.01, “Procedures for Calling and Conducting Public Hearings,” 
Section 8.02, “Text Amendments,” Section 8.03, “Amendment to the Official Zoning 
Map,” Section 8.04, “Conditional Uses,” and Section 8.05, “Variances” To Assign Roles 
For The Planning Commission; To Repeal Conflicting Ordinances; To Provide for 
Severability; To Provide an Effective Date; and for Other Purposes 

 
 
ADJOURN Motion to adjourn at 6:54pm by C. Brown, seconded by Jackson, and all in favor. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Debbie Martin, Mayor 
Christina Brown, Councilmember 
David Brown, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Scott Courter, Councilmember 
Jonathan Jackson, Councilmember                          
James Lawson, Councilmember 
Fredria Sterling, Councilmember 
 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

Dr. Jerry Weitz, City Planner 

Abbott S. Hayes, Jr., City Attorney 
Jennifer Harrison, City Manager 
Jen Williams, Assistant City Clerk 
Media 

 



CITY OF HOSCHTON        
CITY COUNCIL 
THURSDAY, MARCH 14, 2024 AT 6:00PM 
HOSCHTON COMMUNITY CENTER  
65 CITY SQUARE, HOSCHTON 
 

WORK SESSION 
MINUTES 

 

CALL TO ORDER at 6:64 pm by Mayor Martin 

AGENDA APPROVAL Motion to approve as-is by Sterling, seconded by Lawson, and all in favor. 

REPORTS BY MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF reports as included in packet; Councilmember 
Jackson added that he is producing a one-minute video to market Hoschton.  Mayor Martin 
mentioned that “Hoschton” will be added to signs on I-85. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Memorandum of agreement for street light on SR 332/Pendergrass Road at Towne 

Center Parkway 

 

2. Review of Traffic Study (1st draft) and consideration of approval of a roundabout at the 

intersection of East Jefferson Street, West Jackson Road, and Maddox Road (Z-23-02 

PUD, The Providence Group) 
 

The traffic study determined that a roundabout would work better than a 4-way 

intersection.  The Council must decide if a roundabout is acceptable in lieu of the 

original zoning conditions requiring a traffic signal and monetary contribution of 

$100,000.  Planning Staff recommendation is approval. 

 

3. 73 City Square (Hoschton Coffee) door replacement 
 

The $6500.00 cost would include an accessible ramp, awning, and a new door fitting 

with the historic architecture of the building. 

 

CITIZEN INPUT  

Ace Acevedo, 100 Powell Court, shared his thoughts on increasing foot traffic to downtown 
businesses; asked City to consider “share” signs on Peachtree to funnel golf cart traffic to 
downtown from Cresswind and other neighborhoods. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF NEEDED) Motion to adjourn to executive session for real estate at 
7:33pm by Jackson, seconded by Courter, and all in favor. 

Motion to exit executive session at 8:01pm by Jackson, seconded by Courter, and all in favor. 

 



ADJOURN Motion to adjourn the Council Meeting at 8:01pm by Sterling, seconded by Lawson, 
and all in favor. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Debbie Martin, Mayor 
Christina Brown, Councilmember 
David Brown, Councilmember 
Scott Courter, Councilmember 
Jonathan Jackson, Councilmember                          
James Lawson, Councilmember 
Fredria Sterling, Councilmember 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Jerry Weitz, City Planner 
Abbott S. Hayes, Jr., City Attorney 
Jennifer Harrison, City Manager 
Jen Williams, Assistant City Clerk 
Media 
 



CITY OF HOSCHTON        
CITY COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, MARCH 19, 2024 AT 6:00PM 
HOSCHTON COMMUNITY CENTER  
65 CITY SQUARE, HOSCHTON 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

 

CALL TO ORDER at 6:01pm by Mayor Martin 

INVOCATION by Jennifer Harrison 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE led by Mayor Martin 

AGENDA APPROVAL Motion to approve with no changes by Jackson, seconded by Courter, and 
all in favor. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Z-24-01 Rezoning (formerly Z-23-13): Southeastern Property Developers, LLC, applicant, 
seeks to rezone to PUD (Planned Unit Development) five parcels of land totaling 12.74 
acres from the existing zoning shown below: 

 
(1) 1909, LLC, property owner, rezone from C-1, Neighborhood Business District, 1.7 acres 

(Map/Parcel 120/014A) fronting approximately 150 feet on the east side of State Route 
53 and fronting approximately 360 on the south side of Pendergrass Road (SR 332); and  

(2) Hilliard L. Lott, property owner, rezone from R-1, Single Family Low Density District, 2.73 
acres (Map/Parcel 120/014) fronting on the south side of Pendergrass Road (SR 332); 
and 

(3) Queen Frank as Trustee of The Queen Family Trust, property owner, from C-2 (General 
Commercial/Highway Oriented District) 2.31 acres (Map/Parcel 120/013H), fronting on 
the south side of Pendergrass Road/SR 332 and fronting on the west side of Towne 
Center Parkway); and  

(4) Queen Frank as Trustee of The Queen Family Trust, property owner, from C-2 (General 
Commercial/Highway Oriented District) 4.14 acres (Map/Parcel 120/013G) between 
Pendergrass Road (SR 332) and Towne Center Parkway; and  

(5) Queen Frank as Trustee of The Queen Family Trust, property owner, from C-2 (General 
Commercial/Highway Oriented District) 1.86 acres (Map/Parcel 120/013M) fronting on 
the southeast side of Towne Center Parkway.  

 
Proposed uses: 292 luxury apartments and a brew pub. 

 
Motion to Deny by C. Brown, seconded by Jackson, and all in favor. 

 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; JACKSON-YES] 

 
 



2. V-24-01 Variance: City of Hoschton, applicant, for Towne Center 53, LLC, Property 
Owner, seeks a variance to the Hoschton Zoning Ordinance, Article IV, “Zoning 
Districts,” Section 4.11, “C-2, General Commercial Highway Oriented District,” (Table 
4.4, “Dimensional Requirements for Non-Residential Zoning Districts,” to waive or 
reduce the required front building setback of the proposed Peachtree Road Extension 
right of way (east property line) from 15 feet to 5 feet or 0 feet for property 
(Map/Parcel 120/013I; 1.54 acre) fronting on the east side of SR 53 and the south side of 
Towne Center Parkway) (C-2 zoning). Proposed use: Commercial. 
 

Motion to Approve by D. Brown, seconded by Courter, and all in favor. 
 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; JACKSON-YES] 

3. Ordinance O-2024-02: An Ordinance Amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Hoschton, Georgia, Chapter 3, “Administration,” Article VIII, “Boards and Commissions” 
To Adopt a New Section 3-801, “Planning and Zoning Commission;” To Repeal 
Conflicting Ordinances; To Provide For Severability; To Provide an Effective Date; and for 
Other Purposes 
 

First Reading. 
 

4. Ordinance O-2024-03: An Ordinance To Amend the Hoschton Subdivision and Land 
Development Ordinance, Article III, “General Provisions,” Section 303, “City Council 
Authority” To Retitle Said Section and Assign Roles to The Hoschton Planning 
Commission; To Amend Article IV, “Preliminary Plat,” Section 405, “Preliminary Plat 
Process Administration,” To Repeal the Existing Process Flow Chart and To Adopt a New 
Process Flow Chart; To Adopt a New Section 408, “Planning Commission Review and 
Recommendation,” To Amend Section 1204, “Variances” To Establish a Role For The 
Planning Commission; To Amend Section 1207, “Amendment” to Establish a Role for the 
Planning Commission;” To Repeal Conflicting Ordinances; To Provide for Severability; To 
Provide an Effective Date; and For Other Purposes 

 

First Reading. 
 

5. Ordinance TA 2024-01: An Ordinance To Amend the Hoschton Zoning Ordinance, Article 
I, “General,” Section 1.04, “Purposes,” Paragraph 5 to Assign Roles to the Hoschton 
Planning and Zoning Commission; To Amend Article VIII, “Zoning Amendments and 
Applications,” Section 8.01, “Procedures for Calling and Conducting Public Hearings,” 
Section 8.02, “Text Amendments,” Section 8.03, “Amendment to the Official Zoning 
Map,” Section 8.04, “Conditional Uses,” and Section 8.05, “Variances” To Assign Roles 
For The Planning Commission; To Repeal Conflicting Ordinances; To Provide for 
Severability; To Provide an Effective Date; and for Other Purposes 
 

First Reading. 
 

6. Memorandum of agreement for street light on SR 332/Pendergrass Road at Towne 
Center Parkway 
 

Motion to Approve by Jackson, seconded by Martin, and all in favor. 
 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; JACKSON-YES] 

 



 

7. Approval of a roundabout at the intersection of East Jefferson Street, West Jackson 
Road, and Maddox Road (Z-23-02 PUD, The Providence Group) 
 
Motion to Approve by D. Brown, seconded by Jackson, and all in favor. 

 

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; JACKSON-YES] 
 

8. 73 City Square (Hoschton Coffee) door replacement 
 

Motion to table until additional quotes can be obtained by D. Brown, seconded by  
C. Brown, and all in favor. 

  

[MARTIN-YES; C. BROWN-YES; D. BROWN-YES; COURTER-YES; JACKSON-YES] 
 

Mayor Martin mentioned an opportunity for residents to donate items to the upcoming Jackson 
County Special Olympics event in April.  Donations of small prizes, individual size chips, and 
CapriSuns may be dropped off to City Hall by April 8th. 

ADJOURN Motion to adjourn at 6:06pm by Courter, seconded by Jackson, and all in favor. 
 
ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: 
Debbie Martin, Mayor 
David Brown, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Christina Brown, Councilmember 
Scott Courter, Councilmember 
Jonathan Jackson, Councilmember  
 
ABSENT: 
James Lawson, Councilmember 
Fredria Sterling, Councilmember 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ALSO PRESENT: 
Jennifer Harrison, City Manager 
Jen Williams, Asst. City Clerk 
Media 



Hoschton Council Retreat      
March 26, 2024-March 28, 2024 
Hoschton Community Center 
65 City Square, Hoschton  
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Tuesday, March 26th  
9:00am-11:30am – Council Issues/Relations 
11:30am-12:30pm – Lunch break for Mayor, Council & Consultants  
12:30pm-1:30pm – DCA (Department of Community Affairs) 
1:30pm-2:30pm – GMA (Georgia Municipal Association) 
2:30pm-3:00pm – Break  
3:00pm-4:00pm – Wrap up / Final Reflection of day  
Executive Session (if needed) 
 
9:00am—Call to order by Mayor Martin. 
 
9:01am—Motion to go into executive session to discuss litigation and personnel by Sterling, 
seconded by D. Brown, and all in favor. 
 
10:04am—Motion to come out of executive session by Courter, seconded by D. Brown, and all in 
favor. 
 
City Manager Jennifer Harrison gave a presentation discussing city-owned rental properties, the 
Mulberry Park project, a future parking deck, the upcoming public works building, the cemetery, and 
the new basketball court.  She also discussed the collection and purpose of stormwater fees, 
impact fees, property taxes, SPLOST, and LOST.   
 
Harrison asked Council for their thoughts on what to do with the 20-year-old playground equipment 
currently located near the Depot and also sought Council input on what to do with the Darby 
building regarding location.  Mayor and Councilmembers unanimously decided that the Darby 
building would be best seen and appreciated by Citizens if moved to the new Mulberry Park. 
 
City Attorney Abb Hayes explained the role and powers of the City Council, highlighted policies and 
procedures, and discussed the importance of behaving ethically. 
 
[Council chose to continuing working as they ate lunch] 
 
12:17pm—Motion to go into executive session to discuss real estate by D. Brown, seconded by 
Lawson, and all in favor. 
 
12:30pm—Motion to come out of executive session by Courter, seconded by D. Brown, and all in 
favor. 
 
Beth Eavenson, Region 5 Representative for the Georgia Department of Community Affairs, 
explained the many program, grant, and loan options available to the City. 



Sherri Bailey, Member Services Consultant from the Georgia Municipal Association, explained the 
programs and services offered to cities by GMA. 
 
Mayor and Council discussed changing the number of planned members of the Planning & Zoning 
Commission back to 7, instead of 5 (as discussed at the last council meeting).  All agreed that 7 
would be best since there were so many quality applicants. 
 
3:30pm—Motion to adjourn by D. Brown, seconded by Sterling, and all in favor. 
 
Present:     Also Present: 
Debbie Martin, Mayor    Abbott S. Hayes, Jr, City Attorney 
David Brown, Mayor Pro-Tem   Jennifer Harrison, City Manager 
Christina Brown, Councilmember  Jen Williams, Assistant City Clerk 
Scott Courter, Councilmember 
James Lawson, Councilmember 
Fredria Sterling, Councilmember 
 
Absent: 
Jonathan Jackson, Councilmember 
 
 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 27th  
9:00am-11:30am – DDA (Downtown Development Authority)  
11:30am-12:30pm – Lunch break for Mayor, Council & Consultants  
12:30pm-2:30pm – City Planning for present and future  
2:30pm-3:00pm – Break  
3:00pm-4:00pm – Wrap up / Final Reflection of day  
Executive Session (if needed) 
 
9:00am—Call to order by Mayor Martin. 
 
Hoschton Downtown Development Authority Chair Tracy Jordan began by emphasizing that the 
DDA’s role is to serve as a bridge between the government and private sector/businesses.  The DDA 
will focus on using real estate to accomplish its goals.  The DDA and the City will be the most 
productive if they can trust one another. 
 
Co-Chair Dr. Sri Kumar explained the need to  develop 3-, 5-, and 7-year plans.  The DDA will hold a 
half-day retreat in July to brainstorm and establish these plans, perhaps using the UGA design 
charette completed two years ago as a starting point. The planning stage of the GDOT lifepath 
project has been on hold waiting on go-ahead from the City.  Once completed, it will provide great 
connectivity to downtown businesses from all over the city. 
 
DDA Board Member Dr. Marsha Hunter also serves on the Historic Preservation Committee (which 
falls under the DDA umbrella).  She is excited about using the new archive catalog software to begin 
organizing Hoschton’s historical artifacts. 
 
Consultant Gary Fesperman shared that the relationship between the DDA and the City Council is 
key in taking the vision from inception to implementation.  He gave examples of how a DDA can use 



real estate acquisition to further business development and to generate funds that will build up the 
DDA bank account.  Fesperman emphasized that it will be difficult to accomplish large projects 
without a paid staffer; DDA could consider use of interns, donors, and fundraising to offset the cost.  
He further suggested narrowing the initial focus to the immediate downtown City Square area to 
generate the biggest impact. 
 
Downtown beautification ideas: corner directional signs displaying City Sq. business names, 
uplighting, rooftop lighting, and murals.   
 
DDA wants to bring back the newsletter used to feature Hoschton businesses and advertise events.  
Previously, it was sent out with water bills; might move it to electronic format. 
 
[Council chose to continue working as they ate lunch.] 
 
Dr. Jerry Weitz, Consulting City Planner, joined the Council for the afternoon to talk about impact 
fees, potential changes to PUD zoning requirements, slow-to-start rezoned projects, and the 
comprehensive plan. 
 
According to the annexation agreement with Jackson County, Hoschton will be collecting the road 
impact fees imposed by the county on the development.  These impact fees will be spent by the 
county for the benefit of Hoschton.  The Council will need to decide how to direct that spending, 
which must increase capacity and cannot be used for maintenance of existing roads.  Ideas 
mentioned: 53 Bypass (Hwy 60 to Hwy 332 to Jackson Trail), widen Peachtree Rd, purchase of right-
of-way/property for roads, corridor map roads.   (For example, these fees are not to be used to re-
route school traffic.) 
 
The Council would like to tighten the requirements for PUD rezoning applications.  They would like 
to see the zoning classification used for true mixed commercial and residential developments (live, 
work, play communities) instead of high-density residential with commercial thrown in as an 
afterthought.  On a related note, Dr. Weitz recommended making the “mixed-use” zoning 
classification inactive. 
 
Discussion was had regarding properties that have had rezoning applications approved, but with no 
work started.  Council would like to initiate a limit on the amount of time allowed to pass with no 
work started.  It is difficult to plan for water/sewer capacity timelines with these potential projects 
lingering. 
 
 
2:53pm—Motion to adjourn by Lawson, seconded by D. Brown, and all in favor. 
 
Present:     Also Present: 
Debbie Martin, Mayor    Dr. Jerry Weitz, Consulting City Planner 
David Brown, Mayor Pro-Tem   Jennifer Harrison, City Manager 
Christina Brown, Councilmember  Jen Williams, Assistant City Clerk 
Scott Courter, Councilmember 
James Lawson, Councilmember 
Fredria Sterling, Councilmember 
Jonathan Jackson, Councilmember (10:51am-12:00pm) 



THURSDAY, MARCH 28th  
9:00am-11:30am – EMI (Engineering Management, Inc)  
11:30am-12:30pm – Lunch break for Mayor, Council & Consultants  
12:30pm-2:30pm – EMI (Engineering Management, Inc) 
2:30pm-3:00pm – Break  
3:00pm-4:00pm – Wrap up / Final Reflection of day  
Executive Session (if needed) 
 

9:04am—Call to order by Mayor Martin. 

Jerry Hood and Chip McGaughey from Engineering Management, Inc gave a detailed presentation  
on the status of water and wastewater in Hoschton. 

Water: Hoschton is well-positioned to have a lot of redundancy in its water supply, meaning the City 
will have plenty of water from multiple sources.  Along with its own wells, Hoschton has purchase 
agreements in place with Jackson County and Braselton, and is close to finalizing an agreement 
with Barrow County.  

The new booster pump should be online by Winter and will enable the new 500,000 gallon North 
water tank to be filled.  The recently approved 750,000 gallon South water tank should be 
constructed 2024-2025. 

Hoschton scores well on its water loss audit, but there is some room for improvement.  Consider 
having a leak detection survey performed to identify leaks in city water supply; Georgia Rural Water 
could be a cheap option. 

Wastewater: The Council is expected to award the construction of the wastewater treatment facility 
expansion (Phase 2) at its April meeting.  The expansion to .95MGD will enable the City to treat 
950,000 gallons of wastewater daily.  A later Phase 3 will increase wastewater treatment capacity to 
2,000,000 gallons per day. 

Stormwater: Short- and long-term plans and improvements 

Future Projects: Mulberry Park, Public Works Building, Proposed Parking Deck 

2:38pm—Motion to adjourn by Courter, seconded by C. Brown, and all in favor. 

Present:     Also Present: 
Debbie Martin, Mayor    Brett Day, Director of Utilities 
David Brown, Mayor Pro-Tem   Jennifer Harrison, City Manager 
Christina Brown, Councilmember  Jen Williams, Assistant City Clerk 
Scott Courter, Councilmember  Jerry Hood, EMI 
James Lawson, Councilmember  Chip McGaughey, EMI 
Fredria Sterling, Councilmember 
 
Absent: 
Jonathan Jackson, Councilmember 



Approved: 
 
 
________________________________________________    ___________________ 
Debbie Martin, Mayor     Date 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Jennifer Williams, Assistant City Clerk 






























































































































































































	Agenda
	February and March Meeting Minutes for Approval
	Old Business #1: O-2024-02
	Old Business #2: O-2024-03
	Old Business #3: TA-2024-01
	New Business #1: P&Z Members/Terms
	New Business #2: P&Z Meeting Schedule
	New Business #3: PUD Zoning Amendment
	New Business #4: Mixed Use Zoning Amendment
	New Business #5: Zoning Time Limit Amendment
	New Business #6: WWTF Expansion-CMAR Contract
	New Business #7: Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement
	New Business #8: A/V Quotes-Community Center
	New Business #9: Personnel Policy-Cell Phone Stipend
	New Business #10: Personnel Policy-City Owned Vehicles
	New Business #11: Police Mobile Computers
	New Business #12: Police Department Software Agreement
	New Business #13: Transfer of Property to Ultra Superior Homes
	New Business #14: Proclamation-Municipal Clerks Week



